
          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

Click link to join meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86449881766 
                Meeting ID:                      864 4988 1766 

 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 7, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, September 7, 2021 be 

approved as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 19, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 19, 2021 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report, Introduction of             
 Sartaj Grewal, New Building Inspector Level 1  

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding 
 Bill Payment Options Policy  
 Recommendations:  
 That the cost of setting up the e-commerce bill payment, emailing and look-up 
 service ($1,500 - $2,000) included in the Bill Payment Options Policy be funded 
 from the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds; and  
 That Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy, be approved.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
September 7, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86449881766


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 7, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\2.1 2021 09 07 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding 
 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
 Recommendation:  
 That the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule be approved. 
 
5.3 Eric White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021 

regarding SBA BC91022-B INDIAN ARM (W0722) - Proposed Telecom Tower 
Recommendation: 
That staff continue communication with Synergy Land Corporation to determine a 
suitable location for the proposed Telecom Tower on a cost recovery basis. 

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Appointment of 
Mayor Ross, and alternate, as voting delegates at the Annual General Meetings for 
the Municipal Insurance Association of BC.  

 Recommendation: 
 That Mayor Ross be appointed as a voting delegate at the Annual General Meeting 

on September 13, 2021, for the Municipal Insurance Association of BC; and 
 That Councillor _____________________, be appointed as alternate. 

5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 7, 2021, 
regarding Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment 
Bylaw No. 588, 2021 

 Recommendation: 
 That Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 588, 2021, be read a third time. 

5.6 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
 dated September 7, 2021 regarding Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & 
 Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

Recommendation: 
That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 589, 2021” dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and 
That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 
2021” be read a first time. 
 

5.7 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report 
dated September 7, 2021, regarding letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land 
Use Program, Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health, dated         
July 19, 2021, regarding Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 

 Recommendation: 
 That the report regarding the letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program, 
 Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health, dated July 19, 2021, regarding 
 Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir be received for information. 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 7, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\2.1 2021 09 07 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
 Mayor’s Reports 
6.1 Metro 2050  
 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, letter dated July 14, 2021, regarding 

Draft Metro 2050: Referral for Comment (full report available at the Village office) 
7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.20 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
8.1 Jessie Christophersen, Information & Member Services Coordinator, Recycling 
 Council of British Columbia, email dated August 20, 2021, regarding the declaration 
 of “National Waste Reduction Week in Canada, October 18 – 24, 2021”. 

Recommendation: 
 That the week of October 18 – 24, 2021 be declared as “National Waste Reduction 
 Week” in the Village of Belcarra. 

8.2 Krystal Boros, Assistant Corporate Secretary, E-Comm 9-1-1, email dated     
 September 1, 2021, regarding E-Comm Board of Directors Designate –                
 2021–2022 Term  
 Recommendation: 

That Council support the nomination of Joe Keithley (Burnaby) and                   
Nancy McCurrach (Port Coquitlam), for appointment to the E-Comm Board            
of Directors for the 2021 – 2022 Term, to serve as representatives for the Village     
of Belcarra, City of Burnaby, City of Coquitlam, City of New Westminster, City of 
Port Coquitlam and City of Port Moody. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  

Thursday, June 17, 2021 

8.4 Carina Stirling, Community Engagement Manger, Habitat for Humanity, letter dated 
July 12, 2021, regarding Thank You for the Generous Donation 

8.5 Terry Rysz, Mayor, District of Sicamous, letter dated July 15, 2021, regarding 
Protection of Outdoor Recreation Opportunities and Established Snowmobile 
Recreational Sites or Trails in BC 

8.6 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated July 21, 2021, 
regarding E-Comm Board of Directors Designates – 2021-2022 Term 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 7, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\2.1 2021 09 07 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.7 Brad West, Mayor, City of Port Coquitlam, letter dated July 22, 2021, regarding       
E-Comm Board of Directors Designate – 2021-2022 Term 

8.8 Stephanie Lam, Legislative Services Manager, City of Coquitlam, letter dated   
August 13, 2021, to Krystal Boros, Assistant Corporate Secretary, E-Comm 9-1-1, 
regarding E-Comm Board of Directors Designate – 2021-2022 Term 

8.9 Richard Stewart, Mayor, City of Coquitlam, letter dated July 28, 2021, to Sav Dhaliwal, 
Board Chair, Metro Vancouver, regarding Fire Protection in Metro Vancouver 
Watersheds (full report available at the Village office) 

8.10 Paula Kusack, Deputy Corporate Officer, City of Langley, letter dated July 29, 2021,  
to Honourable John Horgan, Premier and Honourable Adrian Dix, Minister of Health, 
regarding Improvement to Pre-Hospital Care System 

8.11 Bruce Gibbons, Merville Water Guardians, email dated July 30, 2021, regarding Ban 
Water Bottling of Our Groundwater (full report available at the Village office) 

 
8.12 Dr. Teale Phelps Bondaroff, Chair & Co-Founder, AccessBC Campaign, email dated 

July 30, 2021, regarding Correspondence and Request from AccessBC Campaign 
 
8.13 Kate Zanon, General Manager, Community Development, City of Port Moody, letter 

dated July 30, 2021, regarding City of Port Moody Official Community Plan Update: 
Port Moody 2050 

 
8.14 Brian Frenkel, President, Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM), letter dated         

August 11, 2021, regarding Canada Community-Building Funs / Gas Tax Fund: 
Community Works Fund Top-Up Payment & Updated Eligibility Guidelines 

8.15 Roger Quan, Director, Air Quality & Climate Change, Metro Vancouver, letter dated 
August 13, 2021, regarding Caring for the Air 2021, Metro Vancouver’s Annual 
Review of Air Quality and Climate Change (full report available at the Village office) 

8.16 Lynn Embury-Williams, Executive Director, Wood WORKS! BC / Canadian Wood 
Council, letter dated August 13, 2021, regarding North American Wood Design 
Awards Book (full report available at the Village office) 

8.17 Krystyn Izowski, Belcarra Resident, email dated August 25, 2021, regarding Waste 
Vehicle - Pollution 

8.18 Tara Faganello, Assistant Deputy Minister, Ministry of Municipal Affairs, letter dated 
August 27, 2021, regarding Proof of Vaccination & Mandatory Mask Requirements 

8.19 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Trustee, School District 43 (SD43), Coquitlam, notice dated      
 August 29, 2021, regarding Community Update – Anmore, Belcarra 

8.20 Aliya Mohamed, Director of Public Affairs, TransLink, email dated August 31, 2021 
 regarding TransLink Mask Mandate, Fall Service Changes & Kids Ride Free 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  September 7, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\2.1 2021 09 07 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the September 7, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 

(k)  negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed 
provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and 
that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm 
the interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the September 7, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 



           
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell  
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 
Others in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, K&E Business Services, Financial Consultant (departed the meeting at 8:24 pm) 
Chris Boit, ISL Engineering Services, Engineering Consultant 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 19, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 19, 2021, be amended by 
 adding:  
  Item 5.9    Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness  
          Coordinator, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding Risk of Wildfire 
          and Evacuation; and 
  Item 6.4    Councillor Drake – Follow Up on Motions from Regular Council  
          Meeting held on July 5, 2021; and 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 19, 2021, be amended by 
 withdrawing: 
  Item 5.8     Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 19, 2021, 

          regarding E. Shoolestani Request – 3762 Marine Avenue; and  
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 19, 2021, be approved as 

amended. 
CARRIED  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

Via Zoom 
 July 19, 2021 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 2 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 5, 2021 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 5, 2021, be amended by 
 adding the following to Item 6.5: 
  “…concern with regard to bus and First Responder delays caused by traffic line 
  ups at the Park…”  

CARRIED 
  Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 

 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 5, 2021 be adopted as 

amended. 
CARRIED 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Ione Smith, Director, Upland Agricultural Consulting Ltd., presentation regarding   
 Tri-Cities Region Food Security Action Plan (full report available at the Village office) 
 I. Smith provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Tri-Cities Region Food Security 
 Action Plan as follows: 

• Funding provided by the Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) 
• Project team – Upland Agricultural Consulting & Urban Food Strategies 
• Project process – February to August 2021 
• Tri-Cities Food Council Members 
• Key Engagement Activities 
• Key Concepts 

o Household Food Security 
o Community Food Security 

• Plan Structure 
• Vision Statement 
• Key Goals & Recommendations 
• Implementation Scenarios 

 Ione Smith noted that the steering committee for the Tri-Cities Region Food Security 
 Action Plan are a sophisticated group consisting of Fraser Health and School District 
 partners and elected officials, including Councillor Clark.  

  Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the presentation provided by Ione Smith, Director, Upland Agricultural            
 Consulting Ltd., regarding Tri-Cities Region Food Security Action Plan be received   
 for information. 

CARRIED 
 Mayor Ross thanked Ione Smith for her work on the project and for the information 
 provided. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 3 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

 Ione Smith, Upland Agricultural Consulting Ltd., left the meeting at 7:21 pm. 
4.2 Kim Halowski, Community Relations Manager and Darin Wong, Community & 
 Indigenous Relations Manager, FortisBC, presentation regarding FortisBC’s Climate 
 Action Plan 
 Kim Halowski & Darin Wong, FortisBC, provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding 
 FortisBC’s Climate Action Plan as follows: 

• FortisBC Areas of Operation 
• BC Policy Context 
• 30BY30 – FortisBC’s target to reduce customers’ GHG Emissions by 30% 

overall by the year 2030 
• Four Pillars of the Clean Growth Pathway 
• Energy Pathways Report 

 Discussion ensued, Council asked pertinent questions. 
  Moved by:  Councillor Clark 

 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the presentation provided by Kim Halowski, Community Relations Manager   
 and Darin Wong, Community & Indigenous Relations Manager, FortisBC regarding 
 FortisBC’s Climate Action Plan be received for information. 

CARRIED 
 Mayor Ross thanked Kim Halowski and Darin Wong for their attendance and for the 
 information provided. 
 Kim Halowski and Darin Wong, FortisBC, left the meeting at 7:39 pm 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding Bill 

Payments and Related Banking Fees / Charges 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. Considerable discussion ensued. 

  Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That a policy on bill payment options for residents / customers be prepared for 
 Council consideration.  

CARRIED 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding COVID-19 
Restart Grant Update as at June 30, 2021 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. A report will be brought back to Council in September 
with further information. Discussion ensued. Council asked pertinent questions.  

 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Clark 

That the report titled “Status of COVID-19 Restart Grant Funds as at June 30, 2021” be 
received for information.  

CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 4 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

 
5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding 2021 

Budget Variance Report to June 30, 2021 
 K. Bjorgaard outlined the report. He noted that the budget is on track to meet the target 

goals. Discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That the report titled “2021 Budget Variance Report Based on Results to June 30, 2021” 

be received for information. 
CARRIED 

 Mayor Ross thanked Ken Bjorgaard for the reports and the information provided. 
  Ken Bjorgaard left the meeting at 8:24 pm 
 
5.4 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering, verbal report regarding Cats Eyes 

Installation 
 C. Boit provided an overview on the installation of Cats Eyes in the Village. He is 

working with S. Novak and the contractor to fix a few deficiencies. C. Boit advised that 
there is a fine line on how much Cats Eyes may be recessed into the asphalt.  

 Councillor Clark queried with regard to receiving written reports when possible.  
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the verbal report from Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering,  
 regarding Cats Eyes Installation be received for information. 

CARRIED  
5.5 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding Village 

of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment Bylaw No. 588, 2021 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment Bylaw     
 No. 588, 2021, be read a second time. 

   CARRIED  
5.6 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Response from 

RCMP regarding Noise On / From the Water 
 L. Dysart provided an overview of the Response from the RCMP regarding Noise On or 

From the Water. Information will be posted on the website along with the RCMP non-
emergency number. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the verbal report from Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, regarding  

Response from RCMP regarding Noise On / From the Water, be received for information. 
CARRIED 

The meeting recessed at 8:42 pm and reconvened at 8:50 pm. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 5 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

5.7 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 
July 19, 2021, regarding Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

 S. Novak outlined the report noting that information provided in meetings with the     
Tree Committee were considered in preparing the new bylaw.  The maintenance of 
previously pruned trees, permits to improve views, penalties, and working with BC 
Hydro to improve their work in the Village are items that have also been included.       
S. Novak noted that B.A. Blackwell is currently undertaking FireSmart work in the 
Village and will provide a report in November 2021. 

 Councillor Clark, Tree Committee Council representative, queried with regard to the 
following: 

• Item 8.5 of Tree Cutting Permit: 
o No charge to maintain previously pruned trees. 
o Concern was expressed regarding the expiration date of the arborist 

report attached to the original pruning request. 
o The need for an amendment to add CAO discretion to an ongoing 

application to prune trees. 
• The need for fines for dumping clippings on municipal property. 
• A map be included indicating special consideration for the sensitive / Riparian 

Zone. 
• Steps that may be taken to address dangerous trees on private property. 
• Consideration for retaining trees on Marine Avenue that stabilize the bank. 

 Councillor Drake queried with regard to: 
• If Public Works may determine whether a tree is dangerous or is it necessary to 

consult an arborist. 
• Consideration be given for all residents to make comments if their view scape is 

affected by tree trimming, rather than only the 3 neighbours indicated in the 
bylaw. 

 Mayor Ross requested that staff provide an interpretation of Item 7.1 and Item 8.5 of 
the Tree Cutting Permit when the report is brought back to Council. 

 Discussion ensued with regard to the number of neighbors consulted on tree trimming 
for views and the cost of requiring buffer zones on private property. 

 Sandra Chapman, Tree Committee Chair, noted that the Tree Committee was in favour 
of the removal of the power of veto in respect to tree removal or trimming. She also 
noted that documentation with regard to a notice to a resident of dangerous trees on 
private property would be helpful for insurance purposes. 

 Staff will follow up and provide an updated report to Council. 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 

That the “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” report dated 
July 19, 2021, be received for information; and  

 That “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be brought back to 
the first Council meeting in September for consideration of first reading. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 6 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

      CARRIED 
Item 5.8 was withdrawn from the agenda at the request of the proponent 
5.8 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 19, 2021, regarding 
 E. Shoolestani Request – 3762 Marine Avenue  
           Withdrawn. 

 5.9    Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated      
 July 19, 2021 regarding Risk of Wildfire and Evacuation 

  S. Novak outlined the report. Discussion ensued. 
  Councillor Drake noted that the report was discussed at the Water Committee Meeting on   
 July 19, 2021. 

  Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
  Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
  That the report on “Risk of Wildfire and Evacuation” dated July 19, 2021, be received     
  for information. 

CARRIED 

 6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor’s Reports 
6.1  Access to Metro Vancouver Parks and other recreational areas  

• Transit, Cycling, Walking and a cooperative approach. 
 Mayor Ross outlined a cooperative approach taken by TransLink with the expansion of 
 increased transit services to the Park. 

6.2  Metro Vancouver 2050 Plan – draft 
• Opportunities to provide feedback.  
• Key dates: 

o Released June 2021. 
o Feedback opportunities including an online feedback form. The deadline for 

submissions is November 26, 2021. 
 Mayor Ross noted that information will be posted on the Belcarra website with regard to    

 the Metro Vancouver 2050 Plan and the link to online feedback opportunities.  

6.3  Volunteer Recognition 
 Mayor Ross recognized Sherry Chisholm who was instrumental in petitioning to bring 
 FortisBC services to the Village. He expressed his appreciation on behalf of the 
 community. 

6.4  Councillor Drake – Follow Up on Motions from Regular Council Meeting held 
 on July 5, 2021 
 Councillor Drake provided an update on the motions which were discussed at a Water 
 Committee held on July 19, 2021. He noted that S. Novak is working on documenting 
 procedures and priorities with Chris Boit, ISL Engineering and the Sasamat Volunteer    
 Fire Department. Councillor Drake expressed his appreciation for the continuing work. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 7 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

 
6.5 Councillor Drake – Water Committee Appointment Extension 
 Councillor Drake noted that the Water Committee appointments expire at the end of 
 July 2021. 
 Mayor Ross thanked Chair Devlin and Water Committee members for their ongoing 
 work. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the Water Committee term be extended to December 31, 2021; and  
 That consideration be given to updating the Terms of Reference for the Water        
 Committee. 

CARRIED 
7. BYLAWS 
 No items. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.6 be received. 

CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 

 No items. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Cindy Fortin, Mayor, District of Peachland, letter dated June 9, 2021, to Honourable 
 Josie Osborne, Minister of Municipal Affairs & Honourable George Heyman, Minister 
 of Environment & Climate Change Strategy, regarding BC Climate Action Revenue 
 Incentive Program (CARIP) 
8.2 Aymone Agossou, Manager, Funding, Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM), 
 letter dated June 28, 2021, regarding Integrated Asset Management / Long – Term 
 Financial Plan Grant Approval 
 L. Dysart outlined the FCM Integrated Asset Management / Long – Term Financial Plan 
 Grant that was received. 

8.3 Brian Bedford, Executive Director, Local Government Infrastructure & Finance, 
 Ministry of Municipal Affairs, letter dated July 8, 2021, regarding Investing in Canada 
 Infrastructure Program – Environmental Quality Program, Project #IG0291 – Village 
 of Belcarra Reservoir  
 L. Dysart outlined the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program – Environmental 
 Quality Program, Project #IG0291 – Village of Belcarra Reservoir Grant that was 
 denied. 
 Mayor Ross expressed appreciation for MP Nelly Shin, who was supportive of the grant 
 application. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 19, 2021 

Page 8 of 8 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting 
Minutes.docx 
 

8.4 Jeff Chute, Belcarra Resident, email dated July 4, 2021, regarding Letter to Belcarra 
 Municipal Council re: Trails 

8.5 Jillian Hull, Belcarra Resident, email dated July 6, 2021, regarding A Note of Thanks  

8.6 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated July 8, 2021, regarding Sasamat 
 Greenway & Belcarra Park Springboard Trail Overflow Parking (full report available 
 at the Village office) 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
9.1 Councillor Clark – Parking 
 Councillor Clark queried with regard to the potential for a change in the Bylaw Officer 
 hours. Considerable discussion ensued with regard to various aspects of Bylaw 
 Enforcement.  
 L. Dysart will follow up on this query. 

9.2 Councillor Wilder – Disabling the Chat Function on the Zoom Platform 
 Councillor Wilder queried with regard to Disabling the Chat Function on the Zoom 
 Platform. Considerable discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Clark 
 That the Chat Function be disabled during the Zoom Regular Council meetings. 

 CARRIED 
Councillor Snell voted in opposition  

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to the RCMP assisting with 
 Bylaw Enforcement in the Village. 
 David Goodman, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to clarification between a 
 Motion and a Notice of Motion.  
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That the July 19, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 10:41 pm. 
CARRIED      

Certified Correct: 
 

 
 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



 
 
 

  
 

 
September 7, 2021  

 
I am pleased to announce the hiring of a new Building Inspector Level 1 
for the Village of Belcarra.   Sartaj Grewal comes to the Village from 
Prince George, BC where he worked in the building construction 
industry as an Administrator and Site Manager.       
 
Sartaj commenced work for the Village on August 3, 2021.   
 
Paul Wiskar will continue to work to provide for a smooth transition of 
the Building Department files and all related information.    
 
Please join Belcarra Council members and staff in welcoming  
Sartaj Grewal to the Village.   
 
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
New Building Inspector Level 1 –  

Sartaj Grewal  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
4.1



 
 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: September 7, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Bill Payment Options Policy  
 
 
Recommendation 
That the cost of setting up the e-commerce bill payment, emailing and look-up service ($1,500 - $2,000) 
included in the Bill Payment Options Policy be funded from the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds; and  
That Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy, be approved.  

Purpose 
This report introduces a Bill Payment Options Policy and provides information regarding a related review of the 
payment alternatives and service providers.  

Background   
At the July 19, 2021, Council meeting the following motion was passed: 

“That a policy on Village of Belcarra bill payment options for residents / customers be drafted for Council 
consideration.”  

Pursuant to the above motion, the attached Bill Payment Options Policy (Policy) has been drafted. While 
drafting the Policy, a number of issues were examined. The merchant services costs for the office terminal 
which is used for accepting credit and debit card payments was reviewed. Also reviewed was the option of 
implementing e-commerce payment capabilities via a link from the Village website.  
Quotations have been received from a few merchant services providers, and the current service provider (TD 
Merchant Services), for in-house terminal costs including card processing charges. These quotations are 
currently being evaluated. The draft Policy currently allows for the use of credit cards for all transactions, 
including property taxes, with a percentage convenience fee added to all credit card payments to offset the 
Village’s cost.   
Options have been reviewed for implementing an e-commerce payment service which would be accessed via 
the Village website. This service would be undertaken through the Village’s financial system provider (MAIS) 
and one of its partners (Stripe or Moneris), and would allow all Village bills, including property taxes, to be 
paid via credit card through the web. All credit card payments through the web would include an added fee 
similar to the credit card fee for paying via the office terminal. Part of the convenience fee would offset the 
ongoing cost of this service. Residents and customers would sign up for an account and would have the ability 
to pay bills, look up current and prior billings, and receive email bills as opposed to hard copies. This will save 
printing and stationary costs.  
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Bill Payment Options Policy  
September 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.1 2021 09 07 Bill Payments Options Policy 
Report.docx 

The MAIS e-commerce bill payment service is currently in place in a number of local governments including 
the Village of Lions Bay. The draft Policy currently provides for such an e-commerce service. It is 
recommended that the set-up and implementation costs, estimated at $1,500 to $2,000, for the e-commerce 
service be covered by the COVID-19 Restart Grant. The goal would be to cover the ongoing monthly user costs 
through a convenience fee charges, as noted above.  
The Bill Payment Policy is based on the premise that the Village of Belcarra should not incur charges if certain 
residents or customers use their credit card for making payments. This is referred to as cost neutrality. The use 
of credit cards for all transactions including property taxes would be permitted by using the in-house terminal or 
by the e-commerce link on the website. A fee for this convenience will be added to the cost of the transaction.  
The goal is to lower costs and provide convenient payment options for residents and customers by 
implementing modern bill payment services. Processes will be developed in the future to ensure that payment 
data can be posted directly into the Village MAIS financial system. This will save staff time by not having to 
post each transaction manually. All of these services will allow for a more efficient and cost-effective operation.   
 
Attachment: 

• Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy 
 



1 
 

  
 

 
Title: Bill Payment Options 
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY:  COUNCIL  DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS   

 
1. BACKGROUND ....................................................................................................... 2 

2. PURPOSE ................................................................................................................ 2 

3. BILL PAYMENT POLICY.......................................................................................... 2 

3.1 Definitions ............................................................................................................ 2 

3.2 Bill Payment Options Offered ............................................................................. 3 

3.3 Cost Neutrality ..................................................................................................... 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
CORPORATE POLICY NO. 220 

BILL PAYMENT OPTIONS 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment



Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.1 Corporate Policy No. 220 - Bill 
Payment Policy.docx 

 
1. BACKGROUND   

                                                                                                                      
The Village of Belcarra would like to offer its residents and customers as many secure bill payment 
options as possible, with the ability to pay bills or invoices through various means, including but not 
limited to e-commerce payments through the web, remote electronic payments through banks and 
in-person and over the telephone payments. In establishing various options for its residents and 
customers the Village will take advantage of the latest technologies to save time for both staff and 
residents / customers, and achieve cost neutrality when providing specialized payment services.    

2. PURPOSE  

The purpose of this policy is to clarify and outline the various bill payment options for residents 
and customers so that they are well informed as to their options, including the cost of 
undertaking the various alternatives. The Village wishes to make it as easy as possible for 
residents/customers to make payments and do business with the Village of Belcarra.  

3. BILL PAYMENT POLICY                                                                                                     
  

3.1  Definitions  
“Card Verification Value (CVV) code” is the 3 or 4 digit number on credit cards and special 
Visa and Mastercard Debit Cards which provides for an additional level of security in 
addition to the regular Personal Identification Number (PIN).  

“Credit Cards” are secure cards issued by various companies which allow persons to pay 
bills. The various credit cards come with different discount rates, costs and privileges.   

“Discount Rate” is a fee paid by merchants (includes the Village) to credit card processors 
as a fee associated with accepting credit cards, e.g. Visa, MasterCard, American Express 
Discover, etc. Typically, this fee runs between 1 percent and 3 percent, depending on the 
merchant sales volume, the issuing company and the card privileges. 

“E-Commerce Payments” are a method of making payments online via a website by using 
one’s credit card. An e-commerce payment system (or an electronic payment system) 
facilitates the acceptance of electronic payments for online transactions.  

“Interac Debit Cards” are cards issued by financial institutions to their customers which are 
linked to bank accounts and which are used for making payments. Interac debit payment 
cards are Canada’s primary debit card network.   

“Special Visa and Mastercard Debit Cards (Special Debit Card Payments)” are secure debit 
cards issued by Visa and Mastercard which have a CVV code”. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.1 Corporate Policy No. 220 - Bill 
Payment Policy.docx 

3.2 Bill Payment Options Offered                                                                            
The Village of Belcarra will accept the following bill payment methods, for the types of 
payments noted under each option.  

Electronic Payments Through Resident/Customer Financial Institutions 
The Village currently accepts electronic payments for property taxes which are initiated 
through resident/customer financial or banking institutions, whereby the Village is listed as 
a payee type in the various institutional websites, with the payee description generally 
reading “Village of Belcarra – Property Taxes”. The Village of Belcarra will consider adding 
payment options for other types of bills through this service in the future, e.g. business 
licences, etc., where the payment type has an assigned customer account number.    
Residents and customers should be aware that there is typically a lag time between the 
time that the residents/customers initiate these payments and the time that the Village 
receives the payments, therefore residents and customers should initiate these payments 
well before the payment due date or deadline.  

E-Transfers Through Resident/Customer Financial Institutions 
The Village will accept e-transfers from persons who are paying irregular bills such as 
parking tickets, business licenses, etc., with the proviso that persons initiating these types 
of payments need to contact Village staff prior to making such payments so that staff are 
aware of what bill or invoice is being paid to prevent confusion and to ensure that the 
payments are posted to the correct account. It is advisable to include detailed information 
with your e-transfer as to your name, invoice number, etc., to ensure that your payment is 
recorded properly by the Village. These types of payments are limited to daily and per 
transaction limits by the various financial institutions.  

Credit Card and Special Debit Card Payments  
         Through Village E-Commerce Service 

         The Village will operate an e-commerce payment service whereby residents and 
customers can make payments through the use of various credit cards through the 
Village’s website. Residents/customers making such payments will incur an additional 
convenience fee over and above the invoice or bill amount, which is collected in part 
by the Village’s e-commerce provider and in part by the Village.  These types of 
payments are subject to resident/customer credit limits as established by their 
particular card provider. This service also allows residents/customers to view bills 
online and to receive billings via email. Special debit card payments cannot be 
accepted via the e-commerce website service.  

         In-Person and Over the Telephone 

         The Village will accept in-person and over the phone credit card payments and 
special debit card payments from residents/customers. Residents and customers 
making such payments via credit cards will incur an additional service charge to offset 
the Village’s fees which it has to pay to its merchant services provider.  These types 
of payments are subject to resident/customer credit limits as established by their 
particular card provider. 

           
 
 



Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.1 Corporate Policy No. 220 - Bill 
Payment Policy.docx 

 
In-Person Interact or Debit Card Payments  
The Village will accept in-person regular interact or debit card payments, and special debt 
card payments, for all bills or invoices, with no additional service charge to 
residents/customers. Residents and customers should be aware of their individual card 
transaction limits when making such payments.  

In Person Cheque or Cash Payments 
The Village will accept in-person cash or cheque payments for all bills. Cheque payments 
should include the applicable customer number, invoice number, etc., on the cheque to 
clarify what the payment is for.  
 

3.3 Cost Neutrality  
In offering various payment methods the Village of Belcarra incurs various fees from 
financial institutions, credit card companies and e-commerce service providers. When 
these fees are substantial in nature, like the discount rate that Village incurs for accepting 
credit cards, the Village will add these fees to the cost of bills as a convenience charge so 
that the Village and its taxpayers are not worse off as a result of offering specialized 
payment services.  



              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: September 7, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan  
 
 
Recommendation 
That the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule be approved. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to present a 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (includes 2022 budget) schedule for 
Council’s consideration.   

Background 
Pursuant to the Community Charter, municipalities must adopt a 5-year Financial Plan and a related tax rates 
bylaw before May 15th of each year. In other words, the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan which includes the 2022 
budget does not have to be adopted prior to the start of the 2022 fiscal year. Many communities adopt their 
financial plan bylaws prior to the start of each fiscal or calendar year.  A schedule is now being presented 
which provides Council with the opportunity to conclude the 2022 budget and the related 2022 – 2026 
financial planning process in January of 2022.  

Report 
When Council has a solid long-term financial plan in place, as required by legislation, the annual budgeting 
process becomes more of a fine-tuning process. The Village of Belcarra’s 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan was 
adopted in 2021 and includes a 2022 budget. This Financial Plan can be easily updated to incorporate the 
latest information. The Financial Plan can then be considered by Council and the public (for consultation 
purposes) before the start of 2022. Adopting a Financial Plan bylaw at the start of the fiscal year has the 
advantage of allowing staff to proceed with any one-time operating and capital projects, which means that  
staff have more time to accomplish Council’s goals and objectives.  
The attached draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule (Schedule) will result in the Financial Plan being 
adopted in January 2022. As part of the Financial Planning process, the utility rate bylaws for water and 
WARD would also be presented for two readings prior to the start of the fiscal year and third reading and 
adoption at the two Council meetings in January 2022. The meeting dates in January 2022 will be established 
when the 2022 Council Calendar is approved.  
One factor that Council should be aware of is, the fact that some budgeted 2021 operating and capital 
projects which are in progress at year-end, will not be completed before the end of the 2021. Any unspent 
project funds would have to be carried forward and included in the 2022 financial plan. The OCP and 
Integrated Asset Management / Long-Term Financial Plan which are multi-year initiatives are examples of 
such projects. The dollar amounts of these budget ‘carry forwards’ are not known until the year-end process 
has been completed. These budget ‘carry forwards’ which need to be included in a 2022-2026 financial plan 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant 
Council Report: 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
September 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.2 2021 09 07 2022-2026 Financial Plan.docx 

would be brought forward in the form of an amending Financial Plan bylaw in the spring of 2022 for 
Council’s consideration.  
 
Attachment 

• Appendix “A” – Village of Belcarra Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan/Budget Schedule  
 

 
 



Appendix “A” - VILLAGE OF BELCARRA DRAFT 2022 – 2026 FINANCIAL PLAN/BUDGET SCHEDULE  
(2022 Budget Cycle)  

 

1 
\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.2 2022 Budget Schedule draft.docx 

 
DATE(S) EVENT/TASK PERSONS COMMENTS 

 By October 8, 2021 
 

Finalization of Draft Financial Plan – 
staff review and finalization of draft 2022 
– 2026 Financial Plan (includes 2022 
budget and 5-year operating and capital 
plans)  

All departments 
Chief Administrative 

Officer (CAO) 
Financial Consultant 

 

Monday  
October 25, 2021 

 

Regular Council Meeting – Council 
review of draft 2022 – 2026 Financial 
Plan and approval of any changes.  

Council  
CAO 

Financial Consultant 

Includes preliminary property tax, water user fee 
and waste & recycling rate increases.  

Monday               
November 8, 2021 

 

Regular Council Meeting – 
presentation of draft Financial Plan to the 
public to gain feedback or input.   

Council  
CAO 

Financial Consultant 
Public 

Public budget consultation document would be 
produced prior to the meeting.  

Monday             
November 22, 2021  

 

Regular Council Meeting – Council’s 
final approval of Village’s 2022 – 2026 
Financial Plan (includes 2022 budget) 

Council  
CAO 

Financial Consultant 

Includes final property tax, water user fee and 
waste & recycling rate increases. 

Monday             
December 6, 2021 

 

Regular Council Meeting – first & 
second readings of 2022 – 2026 
Financial Plan bylaw and related 2022 
Utility Rates bylaws. 

Council   

First Meeting in 
January 2022 

 

Regular Council Meeting – third 
reading of 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan 
bylaw and 2022 Utility Rates bylaws. 

Council  
Meeting date will be established when the 2022 
Council Calendar is approved 

Second Meeting in 
January 2022 

Regular Council Meeting – adoption of 
2022 – 2026 Financial Plan bylaw and 
2022 Utility Rates bylaws. 

Council 
Meeting date will be established when the 2022 
Council Calendar is approved 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Appendix A



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: September 7, 2021  
 
From: Eric White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant  
 
Subject: Belcarra Telecom Tower 
 
 
Recommendations   
That Staff continue communication with Synergy Land Corporation to determine a suitable 
location for the proposed Telecom Tower on a cost recovery basis. 

Background  
Doug Dommasch, RWA Land Agent for Synergy Land, contacted the Village Chief 
Administrative Officer on July 6, 2021. Synergy Land, on behalf of SBA Communications, on 
behalf of Rogers, is looking to relocate an existing Rogers Antenna currently mounted on BC 
Hydro towers (Location of existing Antenna presented in Attachment 1-KMZ File). BC Hydro is 
not prepared to extend the lease for this tower or provide a similar lease location.  
On July 13, 2021; D. Dommasch provided additional information on the proposed Telecom 
Tower in an email with Eric White. (Attachment 2) “The tower would be built by SBA 
Communications and would accommodate a Rogers antenna to start. The hope is that other 
service providers would stage an antenna on the tower as well. SBA would prefer drivable access 
to the site, but there would not be a parking stall on the lease.” 
The CAO, staff and the Planning Consultants discussed potential locations for a new tower. It is 
noted that much of the area identified within the KMZ file is owned by Metro Parks for park 
purposes, including the present site. Other potential locations were suggested and may be more 
suitable, but these areas are outside of the preferred area. The locations are the Village Hall, the 
Works Yard, or the Tatlow reservoir and Station (between 3460 and 3490 Main Ave). 
 
Discussion  
Staff believe that it would beneficial to have improved telecom (cell phone, emergency 
communications, etc.) access. The Village may benefit financially by providing a long term 
telecom solution on a municipal site. Other service providers may, in the future, be directed to 
this tower when relocation or expanded service require a new site. Staff also note that wireless  
service is poor in the western portion of Port Moody. Establishing a good working relationship 
with a telecom tower (or similar) provider may also allow better service to be installed in this 
area.  
There is the potential to host multiple telecom antenna on a single tower. The Village may 
receive payment on a monthly basis per antenna hosted, as well as an additional base fee for the 
tower. Prices will be determined upon further communications with D. Dommasch.  
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3

prichardson
Typewritten Text



Eric White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant 
Council Report: Belcarra Telecom Tower 
September 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.3 2021 09 07 Belcarra Telecom Tower 
Report.docx 

The safety and wellbeing of all Belcarra residents is of utmost importance. Much research has 
been done on potential health effects of Telecommunication broadcasting systems. Staff will 
work closely with Synergy Land and other third parties (if necessary) to ensure that any new 
infrastructure in the Village will be safe and pose no health risks to our residents.  
 
Financial Implications 
Professional fees incurred for the processing of this request by Synergy Land will be covered by 
Synergy Land. As stated above, there is the potential to create a long-term revenue generating 
stream from monthly fees associated with the placement of antenna on the proposed telecom 
tower, and for the structure itself.  
 
Attachments  
 
1. Synergy Land Preferred Tower Placement Map - KMZ File  
2. Email Correspondence with Doug Dommasch 
 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



From: Doug Dommasch  
Sent: Tuesday, July 6, 2021 3:13 PM 
To: Lorna Dysart  
Cc: Tanya Elchuk  
Subject: SBA BC91022-B INDIAN ARM (W0722) - Proposed Telecom Tower  
  
Good afternoon Lorna, 
  
I am contacting you today on behalf of our client SBA Communications (SBA). SBA on behalf of 
Rogers, is searching for suitable sites to relocate existing antenna Rogers has currently mounted on 
BC Hydro towers. The relocations are a result of the realization that there are now structural 
incompatibilities that restrict both Rogers & BC Hydro from upgrading equipment to suit the 
evolution of their perspective needs.  
  
We are hoping to gain your preliminary feedback as detailed below with respect to the targeted 
areas of interest circled on the attached KMZ files.  
  

• Are there any restricted areas, bylaw or setbacks within the rings we should be aware of 
which may impede our ability to place a tower?  

• Are there any preferred locations within the ring that you can identify?  
• Does the municipality itself have any location within the rings where they might be willing 

to host a tower? Or a municipal building tall enough to host rooftop antenna? 
• Are there any Environmental factors or sensitive areas shown in the radius’ of the attached 

KMZ files? 
• Does the municipality have a documented protocol or policy with respect to 

telecommunication structures that would outline requirements for public consultation & 
application for approval.  
  

This should be enough to get us started. I look forward to your feedback and would be happy to 
meet with you via video or phone call to discuss further if that is easier. 
  
  
Thank-you,  
  
 
Doug Dommasch RWA 
Land Agent 
 
 
Eric White <eric@rwpas.com> 
Tue 2021-07-13 1:03 PM 
To: 

•  DougDommasch@synergyland.ca <DougDommasch@synergyland.ca> 

Cc: 

•  Lorna Dysart <ldysart@belcarra.ca>; 
•  Richard White <richard@rwpas.com> 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.5 Bylaw 588, 2021 Council Procedure 
Bylaw Amendment No. 356, 2004.docx 

 
 

 

An amendment bylaw to amend Council Procedure Bylaw 356, 2004 to include a section on 
Public Question Period. 

WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time 
to time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Council Procedure 
  Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment Bylaw No. 588, 2021”. 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Section 12 be 
amended by adding:  
(6) Public Question Period: 
     (a)  Public Question Period not be limited to questions or comments related to  
            topics on the Council meeting agenda; 
     (b) Questions from the Council meeting agenda be addressed first, followed by  
          questions on other topics;  
     (c) When a Council meeting is held virtually, the full name and video of the  
          person asking a question must be visible;  

(d) A maximum of 2 minutes be allowed for each question;  
(e) A maximum of 20 minutes be allowed for Public Question Period with completion 

by 11:00 pm, as per Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Section 20. 
(f) The Mayor or whoever is Chairing the Council meeting, be granted the authority to 

consider if a question or comment from a member of the public is appropriate to be 
raised in a Regular Council meeting i.e. a matter of litigation, or personnel, or other 
topics that are included in the Community Charter, Section 90 (1) and (2), as 
Council meeting topics that may or must be closed to the public.   

Read a First Time on July 5, 2021  
 
Read a Second Time on July 19, 2021 
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Procedure 
Bylaw No. 356, 2004,  
Amendment Bylaw No. 588, 2021 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 588, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: September 7, 2021  
 
From: Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Subject: Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
 
 
Recommendation  
That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” 
dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and 
That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be read 
a first time. 

Purpose 
Council reviewed the proposed Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021       
(Tree Bylaw) on July 19, 2021 and requested additional clarifications to the report. Additional 
wording was also requested for the Tree Bylaw. 
 
Background 
At a Regular Council meeting held on July 19, 2021, the following questions were asked with 
regard to the draft Tree Bylaw No. 589, 2021: 

a) Questions related to Section 8.4 of Tree Cutting Permit: 
• Council questioned the justification of “no charge to maintain previously 

pruned trees”. This option was included in the bylaw as requested by the 
Tree Committee. 

• Concern was expressed regarding how long an arborist report is valid 
following an initial application. 

• The need for an amendment to add CAO discretion to an ongoing 
application to prune trees. 

As a result of the questions listed above, the following amendments were made to the draft Tree 
Bylaw: 
 Section 8.5, If conditions of the tree or shrub cutting application change in Section 8. for 

any reason, or if the terms of the permit are not upheld, the CAO or Manager of Public 
Works may terminate the application. 

A related statement is also provided in the policy procedures within the application.  

 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.6



Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Council Report: Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
September 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 2021 09 07 Follow Up - Tree Bylaw No. 589 2021.docx 

b) Council enquired about fines for dumping clippings on municipal property. 
• Fines for dumping clippings are covered in the Parking Regulation and 

Enforcement Bylaw No. 518, 2018, Section 55: A $160.00 fine may be 
applied for people dumping clippings on municipal property. 

• Also covered in the Permit Agreement is the requirement for removal of  
clippings and debris relating to tree cutting permits. 

c) Council enquired with regard to a map to be included regarding Riparian Zones.  
• Staff are currently working on mapping plans to amend the Tree Bylaw at 

a later date in order to include a Riparian Zone map that will need to be 
prepared by an Environmental Consultant. 

  Staff plans include: 
1. Hiring an Environmental Consultant to study the area and map the   

       Riparian Zones. 
2. The report by the Environmental Consultant will be brought to Council for 

  information. 
• The map will be entered as a layer into GIS 
• The Tree Bylaw will be amended to include the map  

d) Steps that may be taken to address dangerous trees on private property. 

• In the first revision of the Tree Bylaw, Council requested the removal of  
all legislation relating to the Village managing trees on private property 
from the Bylaw. 

• Draft Tree Bylaw No. 589, 2021 states that for all immediate life safety 
hazards involving trees; 911 should be called.    

e) Consideration for retaining trees on Marine Avenue that stabilize the bank. 

• As stated in the proposed Bylaw, all tree cutting applications along Marine 
Avenue will be subject to the review of a qualified environmental 
professional. 

• A list of replacement trees was provided by the Tree Committee and is 
included in the Tree Bylaw. 

• Stabilization of banks are some of the considerations that an Environmental 
Consultant will provide in their report.  

f) Will Public Works staff determine if a tree is dangerous or is it necessary to 
consult an arborist. 

• Public Works staff may determine if a tree has become a hazard and if it 
should be removed. 

 



Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Council Report: Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
September 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 2021 09 07 Follow Up - Tree Bylaw No. 589 2021.docx 

g) Will consideration be given for all residents to make comments if their view scape 
is affected by tree trimming or removal, rather than only the 2 side neighbours as 
indicated in the Bylaw. 

• One of the mandates of the new Tree Bylaw was to simplify the process. 
The current Bylaw required four signatures. The Tree Committee 
requested that consultation only take place with two neighbors. 

 
 Staff were requested to provide an interpretation of Section 7.1 and Section 8.5 of the 

Tree Cutting Permit: 

• Staff Reviewed Section 7.1 and 8.5 no conflict with the language is 
apparent. 

• Section 7.1 addresses cut down or full removal of a tree, whereas Section 8.5 
addresses trimming or pruning of a tree. 

  

 



 

      
 

A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes 
 

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Belcarra has determined it necessary to provide for the 
management of tree cutting and tree protection activities. 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter - Part 2, Division 1, Fundamental powers, 
Section 8, (3) “A Council may, by Bylaw, regulate, prohibit and impose requirements in relation to the 
following (c) trees”.  

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & 
Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021".         

   
2. Definitions 

 In this Bylaw, unless the context indicates otherwise: 

“A plan for tree planting if applicable”: The Village will not allow to be planted on 
municipal land trees that will grow to a height that could impede utilities, signage visibility, 
safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any municipal infrastructure in the ground.  

“Affected Property Owner” means any adjacent property owner and any direct property 
owner whose line of sight or proximate enjoyment, including but not limited to views, 
aesthetics, and shade, may be affected if a tree cutting or pruning application is approved. 

“Certified Arborist” means a person certified by the International Society of Arboriculture 
(ISA) or the National Arborist Association as an arborist.  

“Crown” means the entire system of branches, leaves and reproductive structures of a tree 
extending away from the trunk or main stem(s). 

Hazardous Tree” means any tree which, due to its location, condition or any other 
circumstance, has been determined, by a Registered Certified Arborist, ISA approved, to 
present a hazard to the safety of persons, private property or any other tree(s).  

“Permit” shall mean tree removal / pruning permit issued in the form of Schedule “C”.  

“Pruning” means the trimming of living or dead parts from a tree in order to reduce size, 
maintain the shape and health of the tree and maintain view corridors.  

“Regular Maintenance Plan” is to manage tree growth and health on a schedule created and 
executed by the Public Works Manager in consultation with a Certified Arborist as from time to 
time deemed advisable and approved by Council.  

“Shrub” is a woody plant which is smaller than a tree and has several main stems arising at or 
near the ground, less than 6 m -10 m in height.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                         2 
         
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 07  
Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

“Tree” means a woody perennial plant having one or more stems, with at least one stem having 
a diameter of 20 centimetres or more, measured at 1.4 metres above the natural grade on the 
uphill side of the tree.  

“Tree Cutting Permit” means a permit issued by the Administrator in accordance with this 
Bylaw, which will allow cutting or pruning of trees under conditions stipulated in the Bylaw. 

A permit is only a permission pursuant to this Bylaw and does not relieve the permit holder 
from complying with all other laws, regulations and requirements of any public authority 
having jurisdiction, nor relieve the holder from complying with civil, common law or 
contractual obligations.  

“Tree Cutting and Replacement Plan” means a plan which shows the trees proposed to be 
cut and the location, size (height and diameter) and approved species of replacement trees to be 
planted upon a subject site to ensure slope retention and/or prevent water migration.  

“Hazard Tree” is a tree which is likely to fail due to Major Structural Weaknesses, adverse site 
conditions or other external factors under average conditions & has the Potential to Strike a 
Target.  

“Replacement Tree” means any tree or shrub, that is shown on a Tree Cutting and Replacement 
Plan as a replacement for a tree which has been cut down.  

“Tree Removal” means the cutting down of the entire tree.   

“Tree Survey” means a plan of a subject site showing the location, species and trunk diameter 
of the tree to be cut or pruned. 

“Tree Topping” means to entirely sever the stem of a tree such that the upper stem and 
branches of the tree are completely removed, resulting in an abruptly truncated stem, and 
topping and topped shall have corresponding meanings. 

3.    Application of Bylaw 

3.1  This bylaw applies to all trees on municipal land within the Belcarra boundary, except as 
provided in Section 3.2. 

3.2  This bylaw does not apply to: 

 (a) Trees on private property. 

(b) Trees that are cut, removed, or damaged pursuant to the Hydro and Power Authority Act, 
      RSBC 1996, c.212, or the Oil and Gas Activities Act, SBC 2008, c.36;  

(c) Trees on municipal-owned property or roadways that are cut or removed by the    
      Municipality or its authorized agents in accordance with approved Municipal policies. 

(d) Any provisions imposed by the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) relating to fire 
 safety and immediate life safety risk. 

4.    Prohibitions  

4.1 No person may cut, prune, or remove a tree on municipal land without first having obtained a 
Tree Cutting Permit. 

4.2 No person shall breach the terms and conditions of Tree Cutting Permit as written. 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                         3 
         
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 07  
Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

5.    Exemptions 

5.1 Hazardous Trees as defined in Section 3 ‘Definitions’ will be assessed and removed as deemed 
necessary by the Public Works Department. 

• Any immediate life safety hazards involving trees, or trees and hydroelectric power must 
call 911. 

6.    Contraventions 

6.1  Where a tree is cut in contravention of this Bylaw and / or conditions of a permit are breached, 
an offence or bylaw contravention is committed under this Bylaw: 

  (a) A person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw, or who willfully does not adhere to 
the bylaws, or cuts a tree on municipal property, contrary to or without a permit, is guilty of an 
offence or bylaw contravention and is liable to the penalties imposed under this Bylaw and may 
be subject of up to $1,000 for the first offence, and $1,000 each subsequent offence. For large 
scale offences, fines may be imposed up to $10,000. 

7.    Professional Assessment 

7.1 Prior to the issuance of a permit, the Village at its discretion, may require the applicant to 
provide, at the expense of the applicant, a certified report by a professional arborist and/or 
geotechnical engineer, stating that the proposed cutting of trees will not create any type of 
hazard such as flooding, erosion etc. 

7.2 Permit conditions may specify measures that need to be undertaken by the applicant resulting 
from recommendations of a professional report. 

8.    Application for Permit 

8.1 Applications for a permit on Municipal property may be submitted by any Belcarra property 
owner wishing to improve their views or sanctity. 

8.2 Permit Applications shall be submitted to Municipal Staff and approved by the Public Works 
Coordinator. 

8.3 At the time of the permit application, the applicant shall pay to the Village an application fee as 
per the Fees and Charges Bylaw. 

8.4 An applicant may re-apply to prune or trim the same tree(s) on an annual basis for no additional 
charge. The original application approval must be presented to the municipal staff and receive 
an updated stamp of approval. 

8.5 If conditions of the tree or shrub cutting application change in Section 8. For any reason, or if 
the terms of the permit are not upheld, the CAO or Manager of Public Works may terminate the 
application. 

9.  Tree Cutting Permit  

An example of the Tree Cutting Permit is provided in ‘Schedule A’ of this document. 

9.1 No person may cut, prune or remove a tree on municipal land without first having obtained a 
Tree Cutting Permit. 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                         4 
         
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 07  
Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

9.2 The applicant shall provide a detailed description of the proposed work including a statement of 
purpose and rationale. 

9.3  A clearly labelled photograph of the tree(s) must be provided, and if pruning is required, a line 
must be drawn on the photograph indicating the extent of the proposed pruning. The subject 
tree must also have a ribbon marker.  

9.4 If relevant, a proposed replanting plan indicating location, species and size of tree, bush and 
shrub that is to be planted to replace the removed tree. The tree, bush or shrub may be planted 
in the same location or in another area agreed upon by Village Staff.  

9.5 Non-refundable permit application fees are payable prior to issuance of a permit. Once the 
permit is issued, it is valid for the work to be completed within 6 months.  

9.6 The name of the insured tree cutting contractor, must be provided with the date and time of the 
planned work. A plan for tree planting, if applicable, must also be submitted.  

9.7 The Village will not allow trees to be planted that will grow to a height that could impede 
utilities and signage visibility, safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any 
municipal infrastructure on municipal land.  

9.8 Confirmation that any directly affected property owners in the area of the proposed tree pruning 
or cutting, have been specifically consulted and any opinions be expressed in writing within 15 
working days of consultation.  

9.9 All written information to be attached to the application by the applicant, including if the 
applicant wishes to maintain a previously trimmed tree. Submission of pictures may be 
required. 

10. Tree Replacement 

Replacement trees may be required as a condition of the permit. Trees selected for replacement 
must be a low growing (under35 feet) and conform to Belcarra’s wildfire interface strategies. 
See Schedule ‘B’ for the list of accepted trees. 

11.   Security Deposit 

11.1 The Village may require the applicant for the permit to provide security by, at the applicant's 
option, an irrevocable letter of credit or the deposit of securities in a form satisfactory to the 
local government, in an amount stated in the permit. 

12.  The “Village of Belcarra Tree Cutting Bylaw No. 110, 1987” is hereby repealed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                         5 
         
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 07  
Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 

 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views  
& Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 



 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application 

Name of Applicant: _________________________________________________________ 

Address of Applicant: _______________________________________________________ 

Application date: _______________________Tree Permit No.: ______________________  

Permit Application Fee: $200 (Non-refundable payment) 

Clean Up Deposit: $300 (Refundable upon satisfactory completion of project. Payable upon 
granting of permit.  

Civic address: ________________________________________________________  
(Location of work near / adjacent to municipal property)  

• Describe the proposed tree work: List number and type of subject trees, proximity to creeks 
and relevant site information as available, including photographs.  

* Note - A survey prepared by a designated British Columbia Land Surveyor may be required 
 in consideration of this application.  

 
Type of trees, shrubs or branches to be removed:  

______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Remove: _____ Chip on site: _____   

Photographs attached:  Yes _____ No _____   

Additional comments: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Applicant: Based on your proposed tree work, complete the following information in the 
appropriate section of either Low Impact or Moderate Impact.  

LOW IMPACT:  

1. Removal of up to a maximum of 4 single trees that are less than 6 meters in height  

______________________________________________________________________  

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
Schedule A  

Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit 
Application 

 

  



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      2  
 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 
07  Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

2. Removal of hedges or shrubs, (less than 5 meters in height) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

3. Removal of branches from a tree/s that does not significantly alter aesthetic appearance of the 
area  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

4. Re-topping of tree that does not result in removal of more than 5 meters of new growth 

       ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

MODERATE IMPACT:  

1. Removal of hedge greater than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

2. Removal of more than 4 trees that are less than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

3. Pruning of branches that will result in significant Aesthetic impact to surrounding area   
_______________________________________________________________________  

4. Removal of a tree greater than 6 meters in height  

      _______________________________________________________________________  

 

CONSENT REQUIREMENTS:  

Owner’s declaration:  
 

I/We, _________________________________________(Owner’s name)  of 
_________________________________________ Owner’s address Owner’s  

email: _____________________________Phone: ______________________________  

Owner’s signature: __________________________________  

Confirm the appointment of ___________________________________ a Municipal 
approved tree contractor, to act on my behalf, with regard to this application.  

Contractor’s name_________________________ Phone: __________________  

Email: __________________________________ 

Contractor’s Signature _____________________________ 

 



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      3  
 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 
07  Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

Neighbors consent: 
 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Phone Number: _____________________________ 

Address: __________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________  

Phone Number: _____________________________ 

Address: __________________________________ 

 

* Neighbor disagreements may be brought before Council or result in permit cancelation. * 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

1. The applicant must provide a non-refundable permit fee of $200.  

2. The applicant is fully responsible for any damages to private or municipal property, BC      
Hydro or telephone infrastructure. Costs will be paid by the applicant.  

3. The applicant is responsible for providing an accurate description of the location of the trees 
in relation to relevant property lines.  

4. Any disputes between individuals over liabilities arising from tree problems or the work 
authorized by this permit, shall be settled by the individuals involved, and at their expense.  

5. The applicant agrees to indemnify and save the Municipality harmless from all cost,  
claims, damages, or expenses arising from the work authorized by the permit or by actions of 
the applicant.  

6. The applicant understands that:  

• The contractor / tree cutting firm must be approved by the Municipality for work on  
    municipal property.  
• Trees must be clearly tagged by the applicant for consideration by the Municipality. 
   Untagged trees will not be considered.  
• Neighbors adjacent to the proposed work must be notified and given an explanation  
  of the proposed work and sign the consent form prior to submission of application (in   
   conformance with Belcarra’s policies and procedures).  
• No work may proceed until this application has been approved and a tree cutting permit 

issued.  
• All costs associated with this application are to be borne by the applicant.  
• After receipt of the application, a site visit by the municipality will be conducted and may  
  be scheduled with the appropriate tree contractor.  



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      4  
 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 
07  Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

7. After approval of the proposed tree work, the applicant is required to notify the Municipality at 
least 48 hours prior to commencing work.  

8. This permit can be revoked at any time by the Municipality.  

9. The tree permit must be onsite at all times during work.  

10. No debris is to be left on municipal property.  

11. Any work inside the limits of approach to hydro lines will be undertaken by a utility  
certified tree company.  

12. All approved pruning work will be completed according to the standards of the  
International Society of Arboriculture.  

13. To request a final inspection, email belcarra@belcarra.ca or phone 604-937-4100 

14. This permit expires 6 months from the date of the application approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Notice: The personal information on this form is collected under the 
authority of the Community Charter or Local Government Act, as applicable.  It is related directly to and required by the 
Village to process your Tree Cutting Permit Application and associated administration and to contact you as may be 
required. The personal information is protected pursuant to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. If 
you have any questions, please contact the Administrator at 604-937-4100. 

mailto:belcarra@belcarra.ca


Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      5  
 
 

\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 
07  Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.doc 
 

 

                                                                                                                 
 

 
Schedule of Replacement Trees as listed below:  

Cherry  

Crape Myrtle 

Dogwood  

Franklin tree 

Chinese Fringe Tree 

Green Hawthorn 

Hornbeam 

Panicle Hydrangea 

Juniper 

Japanese Snowball 

Laburnum 

Lilac 

Lemon tree 

Mountain Stewartia 

Magnolia 

Japanese Red Maple 

Japanese Black Pine 

Cherry Plum 

 Eastern Redbud 

 Quince 

 June Berry 

 Conica Spruce 

 Japanese Stewartia 

 Cornus Florida     
(flowering dogwood) 

 Cornelia Cherry Dogwood

 

Locations: 
 
1. Marine Avenue Foreshore: Land between the road shoulder and high tide is considered to 

sensitive and has the potential to impact marine life. An assessment from a QEP (Qualified 
Environmental Protection Consultant) will be required for all tree cutting permits in the area 
prior to permit approvals. 
All tree replanting recommendations by the QEP will come from the tree replanting list 
above, (Schedule B). 

 
2. Bedwell Bay Road: Land between the road shoulder and residential property line; An 

Engineer or QEP may be required prior to permit approvals due to slope considerations. All 
tree replanting requirements will be selected from Schedule B. All Tree or hedge replanting 
will be aligned so that a minimum 1.8-meter road shoulder can be maintained at tree 
maturity.  
      

3. Municipal Road Ends: The Super Intendant of Public Works may require an assessment from 
a Geotechnical Engineer or a QEP prior to Permit approval due to slope and drainage 
conditions. Schedule B tree replacement will only be required upon QEP recommendation. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
Schedule B 

Replacement Trees 

 



\\vob-ad01\Shared\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 09 07\5.7 2021 09 07 S. Novak Letter from Fraser 
Health re Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir Council Report.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: September 7, 2021 
 
From: Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
 
Subject: Letter from Fraser Health regarding Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 
 
 
Recommendation 
That the letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program, Abbotsford Health Protection 
Office, Fraser Health, dated July 19, 2021, regarding Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 
be received for information. 

Purpose 
Council requested opinion / input from Fraser Health regarding the plan to raise the Tatlow 
Reservoirs minimum water level setting. 

Background 
On July 9, 2021, Fraser Health visited Belcarra for their annual inspection of the water distribution 
system. 
Upon completion of the inspection, a discussion took place with S. Novak, the Belcarra Water 
Operators and Heather Slater from Fraser Health. 
The feasibility of raising the minimum water level of the Tatlow reservoir was discussed and the 
Report to the Water Committee dated June 28, 2021, was provided to H. Slater for background 
information. 
Staff received a letter from Fraser Health dated July 19, 2021, regarding raising the water level in     
the Tatlow Reservoir. A copy of the previous Fraser Health inspection report dated July 31, 2019    
was also provided. 

 

Attachments: 
A. Letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program, Abbotsford Health Protection Office, 

Fraser Health  
B. Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report to the Water 

Committee dated June 28, 2021, Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 
 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A





          REPORT TO WATER COMMITTEE   

 

Date:  June 28, 2021 

From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  

Subject: Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 

 

Council Motion June 21, 2021 

“That staff prepare a plan / report and consult with the Water Committee to assess the feasibility 
to increase the minimum water level setting on the Tatlow tank.” 

Background 

In 2017 / 2018 Opus International designed and installed an electronic override control that gives 
the ability to the Public Works Water Operators to electronically override the Altitude valve. 

The benefit of the installation allows Water Operators to: 

1. Open the tank fill electronically via the SCADA System in times of high demand during 
firefighting conditions. 

2. Electronically set the minimum and maximum water levels of the reservoir. 

Council requested that staff prepare a report for the Water Committee which will assesses the 
feasibility of permanently increasing the minimum water level of the tank. After review by the 
Water Committee, the report will be brought to Council. 

Objective Plan 

The objective of the Public Works Water Operators is to continually improve the water operation 
service, collect data and to maintain a safe drinking water distribution system. The Water Operators 
manage the system according to the Drinking Water Protection Regulations and the Fraser Health 
Authority. 

As per the discussion and motion at the Council meeting held June 21, 2021, Public Works Water 
Operators were requested to explore the possibilities of raising the minimum tank level of the  
Tatlow reservoir. Prior to the June 21, 2021 Council meeting, Water Operators began collecting 
additional data samples beyond the minimum requirements. 

 Procedure 

• Commencing in May 2021, staff began collecting additional water samples from all 
testing ports every two weeks. This is in addition to the mandated samples that are 
required by the Fraser Health Authority.   

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  
Report to Water Committee: Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir 
June 28, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Committees 2021\Water Committee\2021 06 28 Water Committee meeting\2021 06 28 SN Water Committee 
Report - Water Reservoir.docx 

• Staff will continue collecting additional samples until the annual review and consultation 
with the district Fraser Health Officer.       

• All changes to the testing and water levels must be approved by the Fraser Health District 
Officer.  

• The proposed change is to raise the Tatlow Reservoir water level by 2% for one year.  

• After reviewing the data for one year and with acceptance from the Fraser Health Officer, 
Water Operators would raise the level an additional 2% higher for a second year. This 
process would be repeated each year until a peak level is determined based on the evolving 
data. 

Impact 

The beneficial change may be perceived as being too slow. Following this process, it will take 
three years to raise the minimum level of the reservoir by 6%. Over the next three years and based 
on the data collected, the ideal level of the reservoir will be established.  

Raising the minimum level of the Tatlow Reservoir is an operational change as opposed to an 
engineered structural change. No operational changes may be implemented unless they are within 
the parameters of the Water Operators license and are made in consultation with Fraser Health. 

Opinion 

Council is requesting the following three scenarios be explored: 

1. Increasing the water flow from DNV from 22 LPS to 30 LPS, 60 LPS and 120 LPS. It is 
the opinion of Public Works that one of these situations may partially assist with this 
matter. 
In the low end of the water distribution system where the water pressure is already 
somewhat acceptable (Belcarra Bay Road), increasing the flow rate from DNV will speed 
up filling the reservoir and would allow a firefighting water flow of approximately 60 LPS 
for well over one hour. 
Increasing the water flow from DNV on the upper end of the low lines (Senkler) may not 
benefit the firefighting capacity because these areas are lacking pressure.   
       

2. Raising the minimum tank levels of Tatlow Reservoir would be a very slow implementation 
and may still not solve the Senkler matter. The Water Operators continually monitor the 
SCADA system and open the tank fill as soon as a potential fire call is received.  This assists 
with ensuring a water draw cushion for the Belcarra Bay Road area.    

3. Engineered structural change. Multiple designs are available which may include 
additional/higher reservoir tanks, pump stations or a combination of both. This option  
represents a permanent solution to increasing water flow for firefighting operations. This 
may result in the requirement for a chlorination system. 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.1







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.16





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.17



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.18







Good Afternoon Villagers 

Return to school is coming fast.  Many families and community members have reached out 
to share concerns as Covid numbers rise. I wanted to send out a brief update with some 
helpful information and links. 
This isn’t the “ back to school”  that I had anticipated  when school went out in June. I can 
appreciate that many families are feeling frustrated and stressed. As your school trustee I 
am here to listen and support your family, my email and phone number are below. Our 
school board continues to work closely with Fraser Health and with the Ministry of Education 
to continue to provide a safe learning environment for our students, staff and families,. 

Below is the information that has been sent home to families through their schools and a link 
to the letter from our Superintendent of Schools.

 https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/newsitem.aspx?ItemID=574&ListID=ed550773-
e9ff-4e20-9964-4e1b213f518c&TemplateID=Announcement_Item#/=
 
• Schools continue to be considered low-risk settings for COVID-19 transmission.
• Vaccines are the most effective way to reduce the risk of COVID-19 in schools.  Everyone 
eligible is strongly encouraged to be fully vaccinated (i.e. receive 2 doses) against 
COVID-19.  School exposures are more likely in communities with lower vaccination uptake.
• Local Medical Health Officers may recommend regional prevention measures during times 
of increased community risk.
• Masks will be required for all staff.  Students in grades 4-12 require masks while indoors.  
In K - grade 3 classrooms, masks will be optional.  Exemptions will be implemented, in 
special circumstances.
• Daily health checks for students and staff will be required before arriving at school each 
day and those with symptoms are expected to stay home and follow the guidance of health 
authorities.
• Hand hygiene measures will continue, including frequent hand washing and use of hand 
sanitizer.
• No 2m physical distancing will be required but maximizing indoor ‘spacing’ and continued 
‘traffic flow’ measures will be implemented to further protect students.  This may include 
staggered start times, break times and/or assigned entry and exit doors.  Outdoor spaces 
will be used frequently, as weather allows.
• No cohorts or learning groups will be in place and school schedules and course offerings 

will mostly return to normal.

COMMUNITY UPDATE 
ANMORE, BELCARRA 
Trustee: Kerri Palmer Isaak , KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca  August 29, 2021  

mailto:KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca
mailto:KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/newsitem.aspx?ItemID=574&ListID=ed550773-e9ff-4e20-9964-4e1b213f518c&TemplateID=Announcement_Item#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/newsitem.aspx?ItemID=574&ListID=ed550773-e9ff-4e20-9964-4e1b213f518c&TemplateID=Announcement_Item#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/newsitem.aspx?ItemID=574&ListID=ed550773-e9ff-4e20-9964-4e1b213f518c&TemplateID=Announcement_Item#/=
prichardson
Typewritten Text
File No. 0460-01

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.19



• There will be no Gradual Transition option for families.  
Please discuss learning options with your school 
principal regarding District Distributed Learning (Apex, 
COL) opportunities or access to the Hospital 
Homebound program (there are strict requirements for 
access to the Hospital Homebound program).
• Enhanced cleaning and disinfecting protocols will 
continue based on Ministry of Education guidance.
• Parents are asked to remain outside of the school 
building, make an appointment to visit a staff member
(whenever possible) and following all entrance 
requirements – including completing a daily health 
check before arrival, signing in at the office if you are 
entering the building, and travelling only to the area 
within the school that they have been directed.
• For the latest information please visit our website 

at www.sd43.bc.ca.

If you have a new student that you are registering 
please visit your 
school to 
register. Schools 
will be open for 
new registrations 
on August 30th. 

I hope that you 
have an 
opportunity to get out and  enjoy the last few days of 
great weather this summer in our beautiful Villages. 

Please	remember	that	your	school	principal	and	your	classroom	teacher	are	the	best	place	to	
start	with	ques6ons	and	concerns.	The	www.sd43.bc.ca		website	is	updated	regularly	with	
announcements	from	the	Ministry	of	Educa6on	and	the	Provincial	Health	Authority.	Please	feel	
free	to	contact	me	at	any6me	with	ques6ons	and	concerns.	

Take	Care	of	Each	Other	and	Be	Safe	,	Kerri	Palmer	Isaak	School	Trustee	Anmore	Belcarra		
KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca				604-861-0521	

Helpful Links
Fraser Health
https://www.fraserhealth.ca

Daily Health Check / SD43 
Covid Updates 
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/
default.aspx#/=

New Student Registration 
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/
Registration/Pages/
default.aspx#/=

I wanted to share with Villagers that 
schools will be closed September 30 
this year in recognition of the new 
federal statutory day called Truth and 
Reconciliation Day . The Ministry of 
Education has informed BC school 
districts that on September 30th, 
2021, schools will be closed to 
honour this day  and recognize 
indigenous survivors, families and 
communities who continue to grieve, 
as a result of the residential school 
system in Canada. 

https://www.fraserhealth.ca
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
http://www.sd43.bc.ca
http://www.sd43.bc.ca
mailto:KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca
https://www.fraserhealth.ca
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
https://www.sd43.bc.ca/Schools/Registration/Pages/default.aspx#/=
http://www.sd43.bc.ca
mailto:KPalmerIsaak@sd43.bc.ca


prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.20


	5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding  Bill Payment Options Policy
	Recommendations:
	That the cost of setting up the e-commerce bill payment, emailing and look-up  service ($1,500 - $2,000) included in the Bill Payment Options Policy be funded  from the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds; and
	That Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy, be approved.
	5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding  2022 – 2026 Financial Plan
	Recommendation:
	That the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule be approved.
	5.6 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report  dated September 7, 2021 regarding Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views &  Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021
	That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and
	That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be read a first time.
	That the report regarding the letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program,  Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health, dated July 19, 2021, regarding  Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir be received for information.
	3.1 2021 07 19 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	That a policy on bill payment options for residents / customers be prepared for  Council consideration.
	CARRIED
	CARRIED
	That Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment Bylaw      No. 588, 2021, be read a second time.
	CARRIED
	CARRIED
	Mayor’s Reports
	7. BYLAWS
	No items.
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2021 09 07 Bill Payments Options Policy Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Bill Payment Options Policy
	Recommendation
	That the cost of setting up the e-commerce bill payment, emailing and look-up service ($1,500 - $2,000) included in the Bill Payment Options Policy be funded from the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds; and
	That Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy, be approved.
	Purpose
	Background
	At the July 19, 2021, Council meeting the following motion was passed:
	“That a policy on Village of Belcarra bill payment options for residents / customers be drafted for Council consideration.”
	Pursuant to the above motion, the attached Bill Payment Options Policy (Policy) has been drafted. While drafting the Policy, a number of issues were examined. The merchant services costs for the office terminal which is used for accepting credit and d...
	Quotations have been received from a few merchant services providers, and the current service provider (TD Merchant Services), for in-house terminal costs including card processing charges. These quotations are currently being evaluated. The draft Pol...
	Options have been reviewed for implementing an e-commerce payment service which would be accessed via the Village website. This service would be undertaken through the Village’s financial system provider (MAIS) and one of its partners (Stripe or Moner...
	The MAIS e-commerce bill payment service is currently in place in a number of local governments including the Village of Lions Bay. The draft Policy currently provides for such an e-commerce service. It is recommended that the set-up and implementatio...
	The Bill Payment Policy is based on the premise that the Village of Belcarra should not incur charges if certain residents or customers use their credit card for making payments. This is referred to as cost neutrality. The use of credit cards for all ...
	The goal is to lower costs and provide convenient payment options for residents and customers by implementing modern bill payment services. Processes will be developed in the future to ensure that payment data can be posted directly into the Village M...
	Attachment:
	 Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy

	5.1 Corporate Policy No. 220 - Bill Payment Policy.pdf
	1. BACKGROUND
	2. PURPOSE
	3. BILL PAYMENT POLICY
	3.1  Definitions
	3.2 Bill Payment Options Offered
	3.3 Cost Neutrality


	5.2 2021 09 07 2022-2026 Financial Plan.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan
	Recommendation
	That the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule be approved.
	Purpose
	The purpose of this report is to present a 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan (includes 2022 budget) schedule for Council’s consideration.
	Background
	Pursuant to the Community Charter, municipalities must adopt a 5-year Financial Plan and a related tax rates bylaw before May 15th of each year. In other words, the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan which includes the 2022 budget does not have to be adopted ...
	Report
	When Council has a solid long-term financial plan in place, as required by legislation, the annual budgeting process becomes more of a fine-tuning process. The Village of Belcarra’s 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan was adopted in 2021 and includes a 2022 bu...
	The attached draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule (Schedule) will result in the Financial Plan being adopted in January 2022. As part of the Financial Planning process, the utility rate bylaws for water and WARD would also be presented for two re...
	One factor that Council should be aware of is, the fact that some budgeted 2021 operating and capital projects which are in progress at year-end, will not be completed before the end of the 2021. Any unspent project funds would have to be carried forw...
	Attachment
	 Appendix “A” – Village of Belcarra Draft 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan/Budget Schedule

	5.3 2021 09 07 Belcarra Telecom Tower Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Eric White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant
	Subject: Belcarra Telecom Tower

	5.3 2021 09 07 Belcarra Telecom Tower Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Eric White, RWPAS Ltd., Planning Consultant
	Subject: Belcarra Telecom Tower

	5.5 Bylaw 588, 2021 Council Procedure Bylaw Amendment No. 356, 2004.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to amend Council Procedure Bylaw 356, 2004 to include a section on Public Question Period.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Section 12 be amended by adding:
	Read a First Time on July 5, 2021
	Read a Second Time on July 19, 2021
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on

	5.6 2021 09 07 Follow Up - Tree Bylaw No. 589 2021.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021
	Recommendation
	That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and
	That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be read a first time.
	Purpose
	Council reviewed the proposed Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021       (Tree Bylaw) on July 19, 2021 and requested additional clarifications to the report. Additional wording was also requested for the Tree Bylaw.
	Background
	At a Regular Council meeting held on July 19, 2021, the following questions were asked with regard to the draft Tree Bylaw No. 589, 2021:

	5.6 Attachment A 2021 09 07  Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views
	& Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021

	5.7 2021 09 07 S. Novak Letter from Fraser Health re Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir Council Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Letter from Fraser Health regarding Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir
	Recommendation
	That the letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program, Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health, dated July 19, 2021, regarding Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir be received for information.
	Purpose
	Council requested opinion / input from Fraser Health regarding the plan to raise the Tatlow Reservoirs minimum water level setting.
	Background
	On July 9, 2021, Fraser Health visited Belcarra for their annual inspection of the water distribution system.
	Upon completion of the inspection, a discussion took place with S. Novak, the Belcarra Water Operators and Heather Slater from Fraser Health.
	The feasibility of raising the minimum water level of the Tatlow reservoir was discussed and the Report to the Water Committee dated June 28, 2021, was provided to H. Slater for background information.
	Staff received a letter from Fraser Health dated July 19, 2021, regarding raising the water level in     the Tatlow Reservoir. A copy of the previous Fraser Health inspection report dated July 31, 2019    was also provided.
	Attachments:
	A. Letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program, Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health
	B. Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report to the Water Committee dated June 28, 2021, Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir

	5.7 Attachment B 2021 06 28 SN Water Committee Report - Water Reservoir.pdf
	REPORT TO WATER COMMITTEE
	Date:  June 28, 2021
	From:  Stewart Novak, Public Works and Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir
	Council Motion June 21, 2021
	Background
	In 2017 / 2018 Opus International designed and installed an electronic override control that gives the ability to the Public Works Water Operators to electronically override the Altitude valve.
	The benefit of the installation allows Water Operators to:
	1. Open the tank fill electronically via the SCADA System in times of high demand during firefighting conditions.
	2. Electronically set the minimum and maximum water levels of the reservoir.
	Council requested that staff prepare a report for the Water Committee which will assesses the feasibility of permanently increasing the minimum water level of the tank. After review by the Water Committee, the report will be brought to Council.
	Objective Plan
	The objective of the Public Works Water Operators is to continually improve the water operation service, collect data and to maintain a safe drinking water distribution system. The Water Operators manage the system according to the Drinking Water Prot...
	As per the discussion and motion at the Council meeting held June 21, 2021, Public Works Water Operators were requested to explore the possibilities of raising the minimum tank level of the  Tatlow reservoir. Prior to the June 21, 2021 Council meeting...
	Procedure
	 Commencing in May 2021, staff began collecting additional water samples from all testing ports every two weeks. This is in addition to the mandated samples that are required by the Fraser Health Authority.
	 Staff will continue collecting additional samples until the annual review and consultation with the district Fraser Health Officer.
	 All changes to the testing and water levels must be approved by the Fraser Health District Officer.
	 The proposed change is to raise the Tatlow Reservoir water level by 2% for one year.
	 After reviewing the data for one year and with acceptance from the Fraser Health Officer, Water Operators would raise the level an additional 2% higher for a second year. This process would be repeated each year until a peak level is determined base...
	Impact
	The beneficial change may be perceived as being too slow. Following this process, it will take three years to raise the minimum level of the reservoir by 6%. Over the next three years and based on the data collected, the ideal level of the reservoir w...
	Raising the minimum level of the Tatlow Reservoir is an operational change as opposed to an engineered structural change. No operational changes may be implemented unless they are within the parameters of the Water Operators license and are made in co...
	Opinion
	Council is requesting the following three scenarios be explored:
	1. Increasing the water flow from DNV from 22 LPS to 30 LPS, 60 LPS and 120 LPS. It is the opinion of Public Works that one of these situations may partially assist with this matter.
	In the low end of the water distribution system where the water pressure is already somewhat acceptable (Belcarra Bay Road), increasing the flow rate from DNV will speed up filling the reservoir and would allow a firefighting water flow of approximate...
	Increasing the water flow from DNV on the upper end of the low lines (Senkler) may not benefit the firefighting capacity because these areas are lacking pressure.
	2. Raising the minimum tank levels of Tatlow Reservoir would be a very slow implementation and may still not solve the Senkler matter. The Water Operators continually monitor the SCADA system and open the tank fill as soon as a potential fire call is ...
	3. Engineered structural change. Multiple designs are available which may include additional/higher reservoir tanks, pump stations or a combination of both. This option  represents a permanent solution to increasing water flow for firefighting operati...

	2.1 2021 09 07 Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	5.1 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding  Bill Payment Options Policy
	Recommendations:
	That the cost of setting up the e-commerce bill payment, emailing and look-up  service ($1,500 - $2,000) included in the Bill Payment Options Policy be funded  from the COVID-19 Restart Grant funds; and
	That Corporate Policy No. 220 – Bill Payment Options Policy, be approved.
	5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated September 7, 2021, regarding  2022 – 2026 Financial Plan
	Recommendation:
	That the 2022 – 2026 Financial Plan Schedule be approved.
	5.6 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report  dated September 7, 2021 regarding Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views &  Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021
	That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and
	That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be read a first time.
	That the report regarding the letter from Heather Slater, Water & Land Use Program,  Abbotsford Health Protection Office, Fraser Health, dated July 19, 2021, regarding  Raising the Water Level in Tatlow Reservoir be received for information.

	5.6 2021 09 07 Follow Up - Tree Bylaw No. 589 2021.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: September 7, 2021
	From: Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
	Subject: Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021
	Recommendation
	That the report titled “Follow Up – Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” dated September 7, 2021, be received for information; and
	That Village of Belcarra “Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021” be read a first time.
	Purpose
	Council reviewed the proposed Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021       (Tree Bylaw) on July 19, 2021 and requested additional clarifications to the report. Additional wording was also requested for the Tree Bylaw.
	Background
	At a Regular Council meeting held on July 19, 2021, the following questions were asked with regard to the draft Tree Bylaw No. 589, 2021:




